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Mr. Robert D. Anderson,
Minnesota Archaeological and Historical Projeet,
Minnesota Historical Soociety,
North Annex, Room 1,
8t. Paul, Minnesota.

Dear Mr. Anderson:

I am enclosing a copy of the report you prepared on the

Murphy House and Pond Mill near Shakopee during the summer of

1957.
Best regards,

Edward A, Hummel,
Regional Bupervisor of Historic Sites.




Shakopee 0ld Mill and Hotel

In the St. Paul Pioneer Prees of August 1, 1926,
there was a feature article on the development of a new
highway from Mendota, Minnesota west along the South bank
of the river. This highway was %o be eventually known as
the Sibley Memorigal Highway. In this article there were
historical accounts of the various sections that the road
would pass through. Quoting from this article that APPeRI-
ed in the paper of August 1, 1926, one will find a sketch
of the history of the land that 18 now owned by the Minn,
State Highway Commission and is being developed in part
by the aid of the National Park Servioce,

A few miles further on, in Eagle Township, Scott County,

a short distance East of Shakopee &nd witﬁ:in view of the

road the ruins of the old hotel at Murphy's Landing, known
for years as Murphy's Folly overlook the river. And a
short distance from these ruins are the old "Pond's Mi11,*
the ruins of the Pettijohn mill, the battle end burying
ground of the SiJux and Chippeway Indisns in the long war-
fare in which the mounds may still be seen....

This above brief account gives a brief introduction
to the rich history of the site. In the same article of
the Plonneer Press were also some old photographs of the
O0ld Pond Mill and the 0ld Murphy Hotel. They are to be

found on page three of the August 1, 1938 issue.

The 0ld Pond Mi11ll
There has been considerable dispute in recent years
as to the exact date that E. J. Pond and his brother 8. W,

Pond constructed a turbine flour mill on a amall atream
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a half mile East of Shakopee. The Shakopee Argus of Dec.
12, 1872 has the following article:
New Mill
Messrs. Pond have a mill in operation half a mile
east of the eity limits, and are ready to grind, for customers
corn meal, feed, and Graham flour, (P.4)
This furnishes definite proof that the mill was under con-

stpuction in 1872.

The question might be asked, why wes this water pdﬁh;pd

mill constructed at Shakopee? An answer to this querry
might be found in the items in Shakopee Argus announcing
the close of their only mill in the Spring of that year.

In the fall the mill was supposed to have been reopened,
but 1t was never in operation again. As a result, the town
of 8hakopee was without milling facilities.

In the 8t.Paul Pioneer Press of Sunday, Aug. 1, 1926,
on page three is an account of the Old Pond Mill;

##% The "Pond M1ll," a beautiful spot near Shakopee,
built in 1875 (Biec. 1872) by E, J. Pond, Son of Samuel Pond,
ploneer missionary to Minnesota, etand yet, although the
days when i1t supplied grist and flour for the entire locality
of Shakopee and the Indian villages round about are gone, %#%
As this account shows, the Pond Mill was used to grind flour.
This fact has later been substantiated by conversations
with George Pond, son of E, J. Pond.

George Pond reported that the firat mill in the locallity
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was located on the same stream that the ruins of the 0ld
Pond M1ll are located on. An individual by the name of
Petti john built this mill. The Pettijohn built this mill,
The Pettijohn mill was one of the first mills ever to be
built within the atate of Minnesota. The wheel of this
mill was supposed to be an overshot one, but later it was
discovered that the level of the water could not be raised
enough, 8o the wheel was converted into a breast wheel.
ther was also another mill built further up on the atrean
at a date prior to the construction of the Pond Mill.

George Pond states that 8. W. pond, a brother of E. J,
Pond did most of the actual construction work on the mill.

8. W.Pond was an expert cabinet maker. One @f the notable

construction feats that 8. W. Pond preformedvtas the building

of a wood screw conveyor 2"x4" blocks of wood by shaping
them octogonically. Mr. George Pond is able to duplicate
this type of construction of the conveyor that was used
to elevate the grain.

This mill was not like the ordinary mill, A wheel
house was constructed, and there was a turbine installed.
This turbine was propelled by a 10 foot fall of water.
All the machinery that was used within the mill, with the
exception of the mill-stone, was constructed by hand by
8. W, Pond,

The PortMill howe;er d1d not remaln entirely in the
hands of the Pond family. In 1919 the farm wes sold. The
new owner took the o0ld mill wheel oczse and burned it for
Tire wood, and at the same time he threw the mill wheel

in the water.
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Mr. George Pond has offered to assist the National

Fark Service in the reconstruction of this mill. .He states

that he is able to describe alrfhe machimery that was used

in the Mill, and ocould give the location of the machinery
and the flume as 1t was originally. He 1s in the possegs=-
ion of seweral photographs, or has access to them, that
would greatly assiet in the reconstruotion of the wheel
house, flume, penstock, and turbine. The National Park
Service has the privilidge of making copies of these
photographs for their needs,

The Minnesota Historical SoBiety is also in possesse
ion of two photographs of the Pond Mill, and these, like=-
wise, are available for reproduction by the National Park

Service upon request.

The 014 Murphy Hotel
An article has been oomqﬂyed concerning the old Murphy
Hotel east of Shakopee, and it appeared in the Shakopee
Argus Tribune, It was reprinted by the S8t. Paul Pioneer
Press, August 1, 1926. The two articles check with the
exception of some personal references oonoeﬁ}ng the present
Murphy family. Here is the St. Paul Pioneer Press versions:
Interesping Landmark Nearby
One of the communities most interesting landmarks - =
the old Murphy hotel, in Eagle Oreek Townsihip, about threee
quaters of a mile East of the city limits.




Page Five
The colorful pioneer history of this part of the state

A\
is epitgnizad in the story of the old stone structure, in

which are mingled romance and tragedy of a period as rugged
as the venerable pile itself. Within its walls, the atmosp-
here 18 ﬁﬁoquenc of pioneer days. In the winds that sigh
plaintively about its eaves and cornices, one hears an evers
recurrent requiem, and at the twlilight the mellow sunlight
filtering through 1ts window reveals %o th{}naginative,

the ghosts of atalwart leaders, of 76 yearys ago, oéindlan
warriors, and maildens in orinolines, and beaux in gay froock
coats and beaver hatas.

The bullding dates from 1856. It was built by the
ploturesque Indian agent, and pathfinder, Major Riochard
nurphy. It was never used as a hotel, however, and was
églstﬁhed by the ploneers of Shakopee "Murphy's Folly".
ﬁurphy, who was a native of southern Illinois and hailed
from the district known as "little Egypt," came to Shakopee
in 18562, after having spent two years at Fort Snelling.

Rall Charter Granted

IN 1866, a charter was granted to the 8t%. Pau](& 81oux
City railroad company, and the company proposed to construot
a road from S8t. Paul up the valley tc be projected eventually
to the Dakota line. To provide a direct route from Shakopee
to 8t, Paul through Minneapolis i1t was decided to build
a bridge over the Minnesota at a point near the site of
the hotel, where Major Murphy operated a ferry. The records
show that the Major obtained a ligcense to operate a ferry,
July 3, 1854.

When the rcad was surveyed, Murphy visualized a settle-

ment at the point ealled "Murphy's Landing," sinece the railroad
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would form a junction with the river steamboat lines there.
The hotel when completed must have loomed massive and
impoeing among the rude huts and cabins of the settlers,
There are two storlies, basement, and attic. The large dining
room, on the seoond floor, the halls, and bedrooms, despite
alterations evidence the high hopes of the pioneer prbmoter.

Construction of the line delaved

But those were the days of state subsides. Bond issues
were floated to ald public service enterprises and there
was a lively seramble for such favors. Opposition was well
defined and asctive, however, and 1t seems that the raillroad
company did not succeed with itabond issue. The road was
not built uﬁtil} about a decade later. 80 Murphy was left
with his great stone hotel on his hands.

He occupied it as a house and during the years in which
the ploneer days were slowly merging into a more mordern
period, he lived in the building with his family and looked
after%ﬁe farm land,

It is probable that members of the Murphy family wite
nessed the hlstoric battle between the Sioux and the Chippewas
in May 1858, from the upper windows of the hotel. It was il
Hurphy's Landing that the wily Hole in the Day had planned
Yo land his warriors the night of May 25 to masssore the
Shakopee band of Sioux. When he was unable to execute his

coup, the Siocux warriors crossed the river at the landing

and the fight ensued near the oﬂ%a%te bank. Naturally the

roomy Murphy home was popular with the young people of tie
community and for years gay dances and parties were held

there.
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Was Playlng For ¥outh
There are scores of gray-ha‘red men and women living

nMA

in this community who recsll with misty eyes happy,spent in the

"

0ld hotel, scampering though the rooms and halls or dancing on.‘

the spacious dining room floor.

Major Murphy moved baock to Southerd?llinols years ago and

die@ there when more than 80 years old.
More than 80 years old

A son George ocoupled the hotel as a dwelling a number of
years. He died six yeafii.(lQZO) The land on whieh the builde
ing stands now is owned by Patrick Donovan OF Belle Plain.

But the old hotel still stands sturdily where ;t has
braved the storms of three-quarters of a century and unless
it happensa someday to become an obstacle to the path of pro-
gress, it i1s likely to remain another 76 years or more, a noble
relic of the ploneer days in the Minnesota valley.

Mention has been made in the previous article from the
8%. Paul Pioneer Press to the Indian Battle that ooccurred within
the sight of the Murphy home. An article in the 8t. Paul Dally
Pioneer &nd Demoorat, Saturday, May £9,18568, p.l which des~
eribed the battle between the Sioux and Chippewasi

The Chippewas numbered 176 warriors, while the Sotal
number of the Sioux oonsf%ga§or portions of Shakopee's and
Black Dogs bands, amounted to 65 warriors. At about five in
the morning, the Chippewas surprised a Sioux fishing in the
river, opposite Major Murphy's farm. The Sioux was killed
and scalped.

The alarm was immediately given at the Bioux encampment,
when a party orossed to the North side of the river on Hurph&'s
ferry. A running fight lasting over an hour took place on the:

bottom. The two parties sheltered themselves in the bush,
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in true Indian style, snd killed and wounded each other,as
opportunities offered.

Three 8ioux were killed and fourteen wounded, four of
whom 1t 1s belleved cannot survive. The woundecd Sioux are
under the care of Drs. Wakefield and Wieser of Shakopee.

The Bloux asserted that four Chippewas were killed and
five wounded,

The Chippewas either fearing the whites would interfere,
or having exhausted their ammunition, retreated to the bluffs.
The S8ioux reorossed the river, carﬁing with them the dead body
of a Chippewg. The body, after having been brutally mangled,
was burned. (Previous days paper said that the body had been
halved and quartered). The Bioux, after they recrossed the
river, immedlately, moved thelr tepees a short distance,and
fortified thelr camp by digging a ditoh and throwing up
embankments,

In the Shakopee Argus Tribune, Shekopee, Minn, for
June 24, 1926 there was an article concernimg a visit that
E. J. Pond paid to the household of Major Murphy when he was
a youth.George Pond informs the National Park Bervice, thet
his father E. J, Pond would be ablz to desoribe this building
to the minute detail due to the faot that he was ralsed only

a short distance from the Murphy's Folly.
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Shakopee 01d Mill and Hotel

3"

In the St. Paul Ploneer Prees of August 1, 1%&6,

There was a feature article on the development of a new
highway from Mendota, Minnesota, west along the South bank
of the river. This highway was to be eventually known as
the B8ibley Memorlical Highway. In this article there were
historical accounts of the various sections that the road
would pass through. Quoting from this article that appear-
ed in the paper of August 1, 1926, one will find a sketch
of the history of the land that is now owned by the Minn.
State Highway Commission and is being developed in part

by the aid of the National Park Service.

A few miles further on, in Eagle Township, Scott County,
a short distance East of Shakopee and with in view of the
road}the rains of the o0l¢ hotel at Murphy's Landing, known
Tor years as Murphy's Folly,overlook the river. And a
short distance from these ruins are the old "Pond'S Mi1l1,"
the ruins of the Pettijohn mill, the battle and burying
ground of the Si€Oux and Chippeway Indians in the long war-
fare in which the mounds may still be seen....

This above brief account gives a brief introduction
to the rich history of the site. In the same article of
the Pioqﬂeer Press were also some old photographs of the
0l1ld Pond Mill and the Old Murphy Hotel. They are to be

found on page three of the August 1, 1936 issue.

The 014 Pond Mill
There has been considerable dispute in recent years
as to the exact date that E, J, Pond and his brother S. W

Pond constructed a turbine flour mill on & small stream
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a half mile East of Shakopee. The Shakopee Argus of Dec.
12, 1872 has the following article:
New Mill
Messrs. Pond have a mill in operation half a mile
east of the city limits, and are ready to grind, for customers
corn meal, feed, and Graham flour. (P.4)
Thig furnishes definite proof thiat the mill was under con-

stmuction in 1872.

The question might be asked, why was thls water podered

mill congtructed at Shakopee? An answer to this querry
might be found in the items in Shakopee Argus announcing
the close of their only mill in the Bpring of that year.

In the fall the mill was supposed to have been reopened,
but 1t was never in operation again. As a result, the town
of Shakopee was without milling facilities.

In the S8t.Paul Pioneer Press of Sunday, Aug. 1, 1926,
on page three is an account of the 01léd Pond Mill:

##% The "Pond Mill," a beautiful spot near Bhakopee,
built in 1875 (Sic. 1872) by E. J. Pond, Son of Samuel Pond,
ploneer missionary to Minnesota, stand yet, although the
days when 1t supplied grist and flour for the entire locality
of Shakopee and the Indian villages round about are gone,¥##
As this account shows, the Pond Mill was used to grind flour.
This fact has later been substantiated by conversations
with George Pond, son of E. J. Pond.

George Pond reported that the first mill in the locality
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was located on the same stream that the rulns of the 0ld
Pond Mill are located on. An individual by the name of
Petti john built this mill. The Pettijohn bullt this mill.
The Pettijohn mill was one of the first mills ever to be
built within the state of Minnesota. The wheel of this
mill was supposed to be an overshot one, but later 1t was
discovered that the level of the water could not be ralsed
enough, so the wheel was converted into a breast wheel.
/éhercwas also another mill built further up on the stream
at a date prior to the construction of the Pond Mill.

George Pond states that S. W. pond, a brother of E. J.
Pond €id most of the actual construction work on the mill.

S, W.Pond was an expert cabinet maker. One of the notable

construction feates that 8. W. Pond preformed was the building

of a wood screw conveyorﬁ%"x4" bloecks of wood by shaping

them octogonically. Mr. George Pond is able to duplicate
This type of construction of the conveyor that was used
to elevate the grain.

This mill was not like the ordinary mill, A wheel
house was constructed, and there was a turbine installed.
This turbine was propelled by a 10 foot fall of water.
All the machinery that was used within the mill, with the
exception of the mill-stone, was constructed by hand by
5. W. Poad.

'muaf%wﬁhﬁll howeper did not remain entirely in the
hands of the Pond family. In 1919 the farm was sold. The
new owner took the old mill wheel case and burned it for
fire wood, and at the same time he threw the mill wheel

in the water.
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Mr. George Pond has offered to assist the National

Park Service in the reconstruction of this mill. .He states

that he is able to describe al%the machimery that was used

in the Mill, and could give the location of the machinery
and the flume as 1t weas originallyi He i1s in the possegs-
ion of several photographs, or has access to them, that
would greatly assist in the reconstruction of the wheel
house, flume, penstock, and turbine. The National Park
Service has the privilkdge of meking copies of these
photographs for their needs.

The Minnesota Historical Sotlety is also in possess
lon of two photographs of the Pond Mill, and these, like-
wise, are avallable for reproduction by the National Park

Service upon request.

The 0l1d Murphy Hotel
An article has been compiled concerning the old Murphy
Hotel east of Shakopee, and it appeared in the Shakopee
Argus Tribune. It was reprinted by the St. Psul Pioneer
Press, August 1, 1926, The two articles check with the
exceptlion of some personal references conceéing the present
Murphy family. Here is the St. Paul Pioneer Press versions:
Interesbing Landmark Nearby
One of the communities most interesting landmarks - -
the old Murphy hotel, in Eagle Creek Township, about three-

quaters of a mile East of the city limits.
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The colorful pioneer history of this part of the state
ls epltonized in the story of the old stone structure, in
which are mingled romance and tragedy of a period as rugged
as the venerable pile itself. Within its walls, the atmosp-
here 1s @loquent of pioneer days. In the winds that sigh
plaintively about i1ts eaves and cornices, one hears an ever-
recurrent requlem, and at the twilight the mellow sunlight

filtering through its window reveals to thé%maginative,

the ghosts of gtalwart leaders, of 75 year)}s ago, oandian

warriors, and maldeng in crinolines, and beaux in gay frock
coats and beaver hats,

The buillding dates from 1856. It was built by the
plcturesque Indian agent, and pathfinder, Major Richard
flurphy. It was never used as a hotel, however, and was
cristéned by the pioneers of Shakopee "Murphy's Folly",
Murphy, who was & native of southern Illinois and hailed
from the district known as "little Egypt," came to Shakopee
in 1852, after having spent two years at Fort Snelling.

Rail Charter Granted

IN 1856, a charter was granted to the 8%. Pauﬂ% Sioux
City railroad company, and the company proposed to construct
a road from 8t. Paul up the valley to be projected eventually
to the Dakote line. To provide a direct route from Shakopee
to 8t, Paul through Minneapolis it wes decided to build
a bridge over the Minnesota at a point near the site of
the hotel, where Major Murphy operated a ferry. The records
show that the Major obtained a liscense to operate a ferry,
July 3, 1854,

When the road was surveyed, Murphy visualized a settle-

at the point called "Murphy's Landing," since the railroad
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would form a junction with the river steamboat lines there.
The hotel when completed must have loomed massive and
imposing among the rude huts and cabins of the settlers.
There are two stories, basement, and attic. The large dining
room, on the second floor, the halls, and bedrooms, desplte
alterations evidence the high hopes of the pioneer promoter.

Construction of the line delayed

But those were the days of state subsides. DBond issues
were floated to ald public service enterprises and there
was a lively scramble for such favors., Opposition was well
defined and active, however, and it seems that the railroad
company did not succeed with it bond issue. The road wasg
not built untill about a decade later. 8o Murphy was left
with his great stone hotel on his hands,

He occupied 1t as a house and during the years in which
the ploneer days were slowly merging into a more mordern

period, he lived in the building with his family and looked

after%}s farm land.

It is probable that members of the Murphy family wit-
nessed the historic battle between the Sioux and the Chippewas
in May 1858, from the upper windows of the hotel. It was
Murphy's Landing that the wily Hole in the Day had planned
to land his warriors the night of May 25 to massacre the
Shekopee band of Bioux. When he was unable to execute his
coup, the SBloux warriors crossed the river at the landing
and the fight ensued near the oposote bank. Naturally the
roomy Murphy home was popular with the young people of ftie
comnmunity and for years gay dances and parties were held

there.
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Was Playing For Youth
There are scores of gray-haired men and women living
in this community who recall with misty eyes happy spent in the
0ld hotel, scampering though the rooms and halls or dancing on
the spaclous dining room floor.
Major Murphy moved back to Southernlllinois years ago and
died@ there when more than 80 years old.
More than 80 years old

A son George occupied the hotel as a dwelling a number of

years. He died six yearnwﬁ(l920) The land on which the build-
A

ing stands now is owned by Patrick Donovan OF Belle Plain.

But the o0ld hotel still stands sturdily where it has
braved the storms of three-quarters of a century and unless
it happensg someday to become an obstacle to the path of pro-
gress, it 1s likely to remain another 75 years or more, a noble

elic of the ploneer days in the Minnesota valley.

Mention has been made in the previous article from the
St. Paul Ploneer Press to the Indian Battle that occurred within
the sight of the Murphy home. An article in the St. Paul Dally
Pioneer and Democrat, Saturday, May 29,1858, p.l which des-
¢cribed the battle between the S8ioux and Chippewas:

The Chippewas numbered 176 warriors, while the total
number of the Sioux consited of portions of Shakopee's and
Black Dogs basnds, amounted to 65 warriors. At about five in
the morning, the Chippewas surprised a Sioux fishing in the
river, opposite Major Murphy's farm. The Sioux was killed
and scalped.

The alarm was immediately given at the Sioux encampment,
when a party crossed to the North side of the river on Murphy's
ferry. A running fight lasting over an hour took place on the

bottom. The two parties sheltered themselves in the bush,
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in true Indian style, and killed and wounded each other,as
opportunities offered.

Three Sioux were killed and fourteen wounded, four of
whom 1t i1s belleved cannot survive. The wounded Sioux are
under the care of Drs. Wakefield and Wieser of Shakppee.

The Sloux asserted that four Chippewas were killed and
five wounded.

The Chippewas either fearing the whites would interfere,
or having exhausted their ammunition, retreated to the bluffs.
The Sioux recrossed the river, carring with them the dead body
of a Chippewg. The body, after having been brutally mangled,
was burned. (Previous days paper said that the body had been
halved and quartered). The Sioux, after they recrossed the
river, lmmediately, moved their tepees a short distance,and
fortified their camp by digging a ditch and throwing up
embankments.

In the Shakopee Argus Tribune, Shekopee, Minn. for
June 24, 1926 there was an article concernimg a vigit that
E. J. Pond paid to the household of Major Murphy when he was
a youth.George Pond informs the Natlonal Park Service, that
his father E. J. Pond would be able to describe this building
to the minute detail due to the fact that he was raised only

a short distance from the Murphy'S Folly.
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